
+ 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, April 5, 2021 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 

* COVID-19 NOTICE *

How to observe the Meeting: 
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 

How to submit Public Comment: 
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 

Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute)

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments)

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

Items 1 through 5, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation.

1. National DMV/ Donate Life Month Proclamation
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file report.

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
https://www.lawndalecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_16676053/File/Government/Departments/City%20Clerk's%20Office/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
https://www.lawndalecity.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=17106541


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
April 5, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 
2. Dispose of and Purchase Two Vehicles for Public Works Department 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the purchase of two replacement 
vehicles, utilizing Air Quality Management District (AQMD) funding, from the National 
Auto Fleet Group for the total price of $52,897.54; (b) decrease the AQMD budget by 
$90,000; and (c) approve the sale of the 2005 Chevrolet and 2008 Honda through our 
standard public auction process facilitated by Ken Porter Auctions in Carson, California.  

 
3. Annual Review and Updates to the Citywide Records Retention Schedules for Fiscal  

Year 20-21 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2104-016, Updating 
City Council Policy No. 77-04 (Records and Information Management), Annual Review 
and Schedule Updates for FY 2020-21. 

 
4. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2104-015, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $266,319.84. 

 
5. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – March 15, 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
6. Adopting Updated User and Regulatory Fees (Master Fee Schedule) 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) conduct a public hearing and (b) adopt the 
proposed Resolution No. CC-2104-017, with updated fees to be effective July 1, 2021. 
 

H. ADMINISTRATION 
 

7. Updated Illegal Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021 
Recommendation: that the City Council review and approve the proposed Illegal 
Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021. 
 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

8. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
April 19, 2021 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 

 
It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
April 5, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

 

contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on April 5, 2021 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



City of Lawndale 
 Proclamation 

National DMV/Donate Life Month 
April 2021 

Proclaimed this 5th Day of April 2021 

Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles 

Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney      Councilmember Bernadette Suarez 

  Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann Gorman       Councilmember Sirley Cuevas     

1



2







3





Resolution No. CC-2104-016 
Annual Review and Schedule Updates for FY 20-21 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2104-016 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

ANNUAL REVIEW AND UPDATES TO THE CITYWIDE  
RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULES FOR FISCAL YEAR 20-21 

 
 WHEREAS, the maintenance of numerous records is expensive, slows document retrieval, and is 
not necessary after a certain period of time for the effective and efficient operation of the government of the 
City of Lawndale; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 34090 of the Government Code of the State of California provides a procedure 
whereby any City record which has served its purpose and is no longer required may be destroyed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of California has adopted guidelines for retention period for various 
government records; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lawndale has established a Council Policy Manual 
to set forth and identify policies of the City Council which may not otherwise be established in 
ordinances of the City, or which are restated to further amplify existing City policy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all policies included in the Council Policy Manual are adopted by resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lawndale previously adopted Resolution CC-2007-040 
adopting a Citywide retention schedule as Council Policy No. 77-04; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to keep in line with recent changes in State law and current 
“best practices” of other agencies, as an updated version of Council Policy No. 77-04. 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY     
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council approves the updates to Policy No. 77-04, entitled “Records and 
Information Management”, as attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and incorporated herein by this reference, 
as if fully set forth herein and directs City staff to include said updated policy and records retention 
schedules in the Policy Manual. 
 

SECTION 2. The term “records” as used herein shall include documents, instructions, books, 
microforms, electronic files, magnetic tape, optical media, or papers; as defined by the California 
Public Records Act. 

  
SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution and enter 

it into the book of original resolutions. 
  
SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

 



Resolution No. CC-2104-016 
Annual Review and Schedule Updates for FY 20-21 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City Council of 
the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2104-016 at a regular 
meeting of said Council held on the 5th day of April, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 
 

  



Resolution No. CC-2104-016 
Annual Review and Schedule Updates for FY 20-21 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit “A” 



  Council Policy No. 77-04 
Page 1 

 
COUNCIL POLICY 

 
SUBJECT: 
Records and Information Management  

POLICY NO.:  77-04 DATE 
ADOPTED: 
a) 2/17/04 
b) 6/1/15 
c) 3/6/17 
d) 11/6/17 
e) 7/20/20 
f) 2/16/21 
g) 4/5/21 

AUTHORITY: 
a) Resolution CC-0402-010… 
b) Resolution CC-1506-019 
c) Resolution No. CC-1703-010 
d) Resolution No. CC-1711-054 
e) Resolution No. CC-2007-040 
f) Resolution No. CC- 2102-006 
g) Resolution No. CC- 2104-016 

 
PROGRAM PURPOSE: 
 
1. To control the organization, maintenance, retention, preservation and disposition of the 

City's records in a uniform manner and in accordance with federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, regulations or rules, contractual requirements and best business practices.  The 
term "records" includes any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the 
public's business prepared, owned, used or retained by the City regardless of physical form 
or characteristics.  The term "writing" includes handwriting, typewriting, printing, 
photostating, photographing and every other means of recording upon any form of 
communication or representation including letters, words, pictures, sounds or symbols, or 
any combination thereof, and all papers, maps, magnetic or paper tapes, photographic films 
and prints, magnetic or punched cards, discs, drums, optical storage devices and other 
documents. 

 
2. To ensure the following: 
 

a. That City records are available when needed, maintained in the appropriate place, 
and in possession of the appropriate department staff; 

b. That permanent records are retained;  
c. That historical records are retained; and 
d. That non-essential, non-historical records are appropriately destroyed when the 

need for their existence has ended. 
 
POLICY: 
 
OBJECTIVES:  The objectives of the policy are: 
 
1. Preservation of records with long-term or permanent value; 
2. Protection of records vital to the continuation of City operations in the event of a disaster; 
3. Reduction or elimination of unnecessary, duplicate records and staff time; 
4. Reduction of potential offsite storage cost and maintenance; 
5. Orderly destruction of records no longer required for administrative/operational, legal, 

fiscal or historical purposes;  



  Council Policy No. 77-04 
Page 2 

6. Orderly destruction of hardcopy/physical records after imaging and trustworthy records 
compliance; and 

7. Documentation of records destroyed. 
 
City records are authorized to be destroyed on an ongoing basis in accordance with the retention 
periods prescribed by the Records Retention Schedule (Exhibit “A”). .  The Director of the 
Department responsible for records requested to be destroyed shall submit the records and a 
Records Destruction Authorization Form (Exhibit “B”) to the City Clerk.  The Records 
Destruction Authorization Form shall be approved by the Department Director, City Attorney and 
City Manager, and verified by the City Clerk Department. 
 
The Director of the Department responsible for authorizing the substitution and subsequent 
destruction request of hardcopy/physical records after imaging and trustworthy records 
compliance and shall submit proof of records storage and an Authorization to Destroy Paper after 
Imaging/Trustworthy Electronic Records Compliance Form (Exhibit “C”) to the City Clerk. 
 
The Records Retention Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit "A", shall serve to govern the 
disposition of City records, as the schedule specifies the minimum length of time records shall be 
maintained either in Departmental files or the City's archives.  When more than one legal citation 
applies to a particular record, the longest retention period shall apply.  The City may require a 
longer retention period than that period established by law based on Departmental preference 
and/or best business practice. 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions herein and in accordance with Government Code Section 34090, 
the City is not authorized to destroy any of the following records for any reason: 
 
• Records affecting the title of real property or liens thereon 
• Court records or records relating to legal proceedings 
• Records required to be kept by statute 
• Records less than two years old 
• The minutes, ordinances or resolutions of the City Council of the City or of any city board 

or commission 
 
PROCEDURES: 
 
On a routine, ongoing basis, City staff shall review all records under their control which have been 
retained for the period of time required by the Records Retention Schedule.  All records shall be 
categorized within one of the Records Retention Categories as set forth in Exhibit "A", attached 
hereto, which may be amended by resolution of the City Council.  Such records shall also be 
assessed for the following: 
 
Administrative/Operational Value - Records are administratively valuable when they assist the 
City in performing its primary functions, including current and future work. 
 
Legal Value - Records with legal value are required to be retained by law and/or contain evidence 
of legally enforceable rights or obligations of the City.   
 
Fiscal Value - Records with fiscal value contain information pertinent to the City's financial 
transactions, especially when they are required for audit and tax purposes. 



  Council Policy No. 77-04 
Page 3 

 
Historical Value - Historical documents reflect significant events and trends over time. 
 
Upon determining that specific records no longer retain any of the values described, above, and 
are obsolete, and non-essential, staff will identify the appropriate category of the record, verify the 
date of the record and request their destruction.  An Authority to Destroy Records form, fully 
describing each record, must be submitted with the records to the City Clerk's Department.   
 
Prior to the destruction of any records, the Department Director, City Manager and City Attorney 
must authorize such destruction by signing the Authority to Destroy Records form.  It is imperative 
that signatories carefully review both the form and the records themselves to determine whether 
the records listed are involved in litigation or if there is an administrative and/or operational 
requirement, or an exemption, which may require an extension of the customary retention period. 
 
All records identified as vital or permanent records shall be protected against theft or damage. 
Vital and permanent records in their original form shall be secured in an off-site controlled 
environment, as well as preserved digitally.  Non-vital or Non-Permanent records necessary to the 
conduct of normal business can also be preserved and produced in whatever photographic, 
micrographic or electronic means determined by the Department Director to be most effective. 
 
The City Council, City Attorney and City staff shall each be responsible for future records 
management policy development and procedural implementation, as follows: 
 
City Council - The City Council shall approve, by resolution, all records and information 
management policies, retention schedules, any amendments thereto.. 
 
City Manager - The City Manager shall: 
 
1. Periodically confirm that all departments comply with the records management policy; 
2. Present to the City Council recommendations for policy amendments;  
3. Review and approve/disapprove all Records Destruction Authorization Form; and  
4. Perform the responsibilities of Department Director for Administrative Services (as listed 

below). 
 
City Attorney - The City Attorney shall: 
 
1. Review recommendations to the City Council regarding amendments to records 

management policies or document retention schedules;  
2. Review and approve/disapprove all Records Destruction Authorization Forms before 

records may be destroyed; and  
3. Notify the City Clerk's Department immediately of all document discovery requests or any 

other situations which may arise that would require the City to refrain from destroying 
records. 

 
City Clerk - The City Clerk, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for the following: 
 
1. In consultation with the City Attorney, present recommendations to the City Manager for 

amendments to records management policies or records retention schedules;  



  Council Policy No. 77-04 
Page 4 

2. Create, maintain and distribute forms necessary to implement the records management 
program; 

3. Review non-essential, obsolete records and Records Destruction Authorization Forms 
submitted by departments and verify that the documents proposed for destruction are those 
attached to the form; recommend approval/disapproval of Authorization forms and forward 
to the City Manager and City Attorney; 

4. Supervise the destruction of records, ensuring that confidential records are destroyed by 
shredding; 

5. Certify the destruction of records and maintain a permanent file of Records Destruction 
Authorization Form and Certificates of Records Destruction (if applicable to confidential 
records); and 

6. Perform the responsibilities of Department Director listed below. 
 
Department Director - The designated director/lead of each City department shall: 
 
1. Create and maintain reliable and accurate filing systems to ensure the efficient 

maintenance, retrieval and disposition of records under their control; 
2. Institute systems and procedures to protect vital records and ensure their availability in the 

event of a disaster; 
3. On an ongoing basis, identify non-essential, obsolete records and forward such records to 

the City Clerk's Department to be considered for destruction; 
4. Submit to the City Clerk's Department a complete Records Destruction Authorization Form 

when seeking to destroy records and the records proposed for destruction; 
5. Ensure that no City records are destroyed prior to the expiration of their required retention 

period;  
6. Forward to the City Clerk's Department for retention all records which have historical 

value; and 
7. Submit requests to the City Clerk's Department for records management policy or retention 

schedule amendments. 
 
The records of the City as set forth in the approved departmental Records Retention Schedules are 
authorized to be destroyed and said destruction shall be witnessed by City Clerk Department Staff. 
 
 



01001.0001/653170.1  

 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
 

RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved February 17, 2004 
Resolution No. CC-0402-010 

Amended July 20, 2020 
Resolution No. CC-2007-040 
Resolution No. CC-2104-016 

 
 

Latest Revision July 20, 2020April 5,2021



 

  ©1998-2016 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc.                                                                                                                   
Council Policy No. 77-04 

Exhibit "A" 
Page 6 

                                          

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
In 1999, the California legislature added Section 12236 to the Government Code, requiring the Secretary of State 
to establish a Local Government Records Program to develop records retention guidelines and an archival support 
program.  The "Local Government Records Management Guidelines" subsequently published by the State Archives 
in August 2001 provided the model from which the City of Lawndale Records Retention Schedule was developed.  
It is important that City staff periodically review the Records Retention Schedule, and present appropriate 
amendments to the City Council in accordance with changes in law and/or City policies and operational procedures. 
 
The Records Retention Schedule has been divided into departmental sections to enable staff members to quickly 
determine the required retention period for documents stored in their department.  Each departmental section is 
further divided into subsections, each representing large categories of records.  Finally, specific information is 
included for each record series maintained in the department, as follows: 
 
Record Series:  Record series are groups of records which deal with a particular subject, result from the same 
activity, or have a special form.  They are generally maintained under a single filing system and treated as a unit.  
Depending on their purpose, a record series may contain only one or many different types of individual documents. 
 
Vital Record:  Vital records contain information which:  1) is essential for the City to resume operation after a 
disaster; 2) is pertinent to claims to present or future income; 3) is necessary to protect the City against fraud or 
overpayment; or 4) furnish data on current assets, equipment, securities and real estate.  Many permanent records 
are classified as vital records because their historical value warrant special protection from theft or damage. 
 
Retention:  The retention period is the minimum amount of time the record series must be maintained by the City.  
Unless otherwise noted, retention periods are expressed in years.  Some retention periods have been 
administratively extended beyond the legal requirement for operational reasons.  In cases where a department 
retains a copy of a certain record series, the original of which is stored in another department, the retention period 
for copies may have been reduced by the department head.   
 
It should be noted that California Government Code section 34090.5 authorizes a city officer to destroy original 
records, without the approval of the City Attorney or City Council once they have been electronically or 
photographically reproduced and certain specific conditions have been satisfied.   
 
Citation:  The citations provide the legal basis for the retention periods.  If more than one citation is listed, the citation 
requiring the longest retention period applies.  
 
Descriptor:  Descriptors provide additional information to assist staff in correctly identifying which record series 
corresponds to a specific document or file.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS Page CW-1

Office of 
Record (OFR) Retention No. Records Description Total 

Retention Vital? Media 
Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR), or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.

HOLDS: Litigation, claims, complaints, audits, public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Lead Dept. CW-001
Affidavits of Publications / Affidavits of Posting 
Notices /  Legal Advertising / Notices / Proofs of 
Publications / Public Hearing Notices

2 years Mag, 
Ppr

Brown Act challenges must be filed within 
30 or 90 days of action; Statute of 
Limitations on Municipal Government 
actions is 3 - 6 months; GC §§34090, 
54960.1(c)(1)  

Lead Dept. CW-002

Agreements & Contracts:  ADMINISTRATIVE 
FILES (with Grant Funding)
(Correspondence, Insurance Certificates, 
Project Administration, Project Schedules, 
Certified Payrolls,  Invoices, Logs, etc.)  

Completion + 
10 years or 

After Funding 
Agency Audit, 

if required, 
whichever is 

longer

Yes:  Before 
Completion

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  Upon 
Completio

n

Some grant funding agencies require 
audits; Statute of Limitations for Errors & 
Omissions is 10 years; Published Audit 
Standards=4-7 years; Statute of 
Limitations: Contracts & Spec's=4 years, 
Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 years, 
Developers=comp. + 10 years; Statewide 
guidelines propose termination + 5 years; 
CCP §337 et. seq., 2 CFR 200.333; 24 
CFR 91.105(h), 92.505, & 570.502(b), 29 
CFR 97.42; OMB Circular A-133GC §34090

Lead Dept. CW-003

Agreements & Contracts:  ADMINISTRATIVE 
FILES
(Correspondence, Insurance Certificates, 
Project Administration, Project Schedules, 
Certified Payrolls,  Invoices, Logs, etc.)  

Completion + 
10 years

Yes:  Before 
Completion

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S/I

Yes:  Upon 
Completio

n

City preference; Covers E&O Statute of 
Limitations; Published Audit Standards=4-7 
years; Statute of Limitations: Contracts & 
Spec's=4 years, Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 
years, Developers=comp. + 10 years; 
Statewide guidelines propose termination + 
5 years; CCP §337 et. seq., GC §34090

CITY-WIDE (Used by All Departments)

LAWNDALE, CA   ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS Page CW-2

Office of 
Record (OFR) Retention No. Records Description Total 

Retention Vital? Media 
Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR), or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.

HOLDS: Litigation, claims, complaints, audits, public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY-WIDE (Used by All Departments)

CW-004

Boards, Commissions, & Committees:  
External Organizations  - Agendas, Minutes, 
Resolutions, or other documents 
(e.g. County Board of Supervisors)

When No 
Longer 

Required
  Mag, 

Ppr Non-records

Staffing Dept. CW-005

Committees: Ad Hoc Committees, Task Forces, 
Employee Staff Meetings / Department Staff 
Meetings
Agendas, Minutes, Staff Reports, etc.

2 years   Mag, 
Ppr GC §34090 et seq.

Lead 
(Responding) 

Dept.
CW-006 Complaints / Concerns from Citizens Minimum 2 

years   Mag, 
Ppr

City preference; Statute of Limitations for 
personal property, fraud, etc. is 3 years; 
Claims must be filed in 6 months; CCP 
§§338 et seq., 340 et seq., 342, GC 
§34090

Lead Dept. CW-007 Copies or duplicates of any record

Copies - 
When No 

Longer 
Required

  Mag Ppr GC §34090.7

Dept. that 
Authors 

Document 
or 

Receives the 
City's Original 

Document

CW-008

Correspondence - ROUTINE (Content relates 
in a substantive way to the conduct of the 
public's business)

(e.g. Letters, Memorandums, Administrative, 
Chronological, General Files, Reading File, 
Working Files, etc.) 

2 years   Mag, 
Ppr GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA   ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS Page CW-3

Office of 
Record (OFR) Retention No. Records Description Total 

Retention Vital? Media 
Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR), or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.

HOLDS: Litigation, claims, complaints, audits, public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY-WIDE (Used by All Departments)

Dept. that 
Authors 

Document 
or 

Receives the 
City's Original 

Document

CW-009

Correspondence - TRANSITORY / 
PRELIMINARY DRAFTS, Interagency and 
Intraagency Memoranda NOT retained in the 
ordinary course of business 

Content NOT Substantive, or NOT made or 
retained for the purpose of preserving the 
informational content for future reference

(e.g. calendars, checklists, e-mail,  social media 
posting, employee directories, flyers, invitations, 
instant messaging, inventories, logs, mailing 
lists, meeting room registrations, speaker cards, 
staff videoconference chats, notes and 
recordings, supply inventories, telephone 
messages, text messages, transmittal letters, 
thank yous, requests from other cities, 
preliminary notices for construction projects, 
undeliverable envelopes, visitors logs, voice 
mails, webpages, etc.)

When No 
Longer 

Required
  Mag, 

Ppr

Electronic and paper records are filed and  
retained based upon their CONTENT.  
Records, e-mails, electronic records, or 
social media postings where the Content 
relates in a substantive way to the 
conduct of the public's business, or that 
ARE  made or retained for the purpose 
of preserving the informational content 
for future reference are saved by printing 
them out and placing in a file folder, or 
saving them electronically in a folder 
outside the e-mail system; If not mentioned 
here, consult the City Attorney to determine 
if a record is considered transitory / 
preliminary drafts.  GC §34090, GC §6252; 
64 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen.  317 (1981)); City of 
San Jose v. Superior Court (Smith). 
S218066. Supreme Court of California, 
2017

Lead Dept. CW-010 Drafts & Notes:  Drafts that are revised (retain 
final version)

When No 
Longer 

Required
  Mag, 

Ppr

As long as the drafts and notes are not 
retained in the "Regular Course of 
Business".  Consult the City Attorney to 
determine if a record is considered a draft.  
GC §§34090, 6252, 6254(a)

LAWNDALE, CA   ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS Page CW-4

Office of 
Record (OFR) Retention No. Records Description Total 

Retention Vital? Media 
Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR), or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.

HOLDS: Litigation, claims, complaints, audits, public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY-WIDE (Used by All Departments)

Lead Dept. CW-011 GIS Database / Data / Layers (both City-wide 
and Specialized)

When No 
Longer 

Required
Yes Mag

The Lead Department should print out 
historical documents (or save source data) 
prior to replacing the data, if they require 
the data or output for historical purposes; 
Department Preference (Preliminary 
documents);  GC §34090 et seq.

Lead Dept. CW-012

Grants (SUCCESSFUL Reports, other records 
required to pass the funding agency's audit, if 
required)

Applications (successful), grant agreement, 
copies of invoices, program rules, regulations & 
procedures, reports to grant funding agencies, 
correspondence, audit records, completion 
records

After Funding 
Agency Audit, 

if required - 
Minimum 5 

years

  Mag, 
Ppr

Meets auditing standards; Grants covered 
by a Consolidated Action Plan are required 
for 5 years; Uniform Admin. Requirements 
for Grants to Local Governments is 3 years 
from expenditure report or final payment of 
grantee or subgrantee; statewide 
guidelines propose 4 years; 2 CFR 
200.333; 24 CFR 91.105(h), 92.505, 
570.490, & 570.502(a&b), 29 CFR 97.42; 
OMB Circular A-110 & A-133; GC §34090

Lead Dept. CW-013 Grants (UNSUCCESSFUL Applications, 
Correspondence) 2 years   Mag, 

Ppr GC §34090

Lead Dept. CW-014

Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) / Safety 
Data Sheet (SDS)  Chemical Use Report Form 
(or records of the chemical / substance / agent, 
where & when it was used)

30 years
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes - After 
QC & OD

Previous MSDS may be obtained from a 
service; MSDS may be destroyed as long 
as a record of the chemical / substance / 
agent, where & when it was used is 
maintained for 30 years; Applies to 
qualified employers; Claims can be made 
for 30 years for toxic substance exposures; 
8 CCR 3204(d)(1)(B)(2 and 3), 29 CFR 
1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA   ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS Page CW-5

Office of 
Record (OFR) Retention No. Records Description Total 

Retention Vital? Media 
Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR), or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.

HOLDS: Litigation, claims, complaints, audits, public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY-WIDE (Used by All Departments)
Lead Dept. CW-015 Newspaper Clippings

When No 
Longer 

Required
  Ppr Non-records - may be obtained from the 

newspaper company; GC §34090

Human 
Resources CW-016 Personnel Files  (Department-level Files) Separation + 

3 years
Before 

Separation
Mag, 
Ppr

Ensure records kept in Department files 
comply with City policy (all originals are 
sent to Human Resources); GC §34090.7

Lead Dept. CW-017 Personnel Files (Supervisor's Notes)

Shred After 
Incorporation 

into 
Performance 
Evaluation or 
Documented 

Discipline

Before 
Annual 

Evaluation

Mag, 
Ppr

Notes maintained in a separate folder to be 
incorporated into performance evaluation, 
or to document progressive discipline; GC 
§34090 et seq.

Lead Dept. CW-018 Photographs
When No 

Longer 
Required

  Mag, 
Ppr

Preliminary Drafts; destroy unnecessary 
photographs.  GC §§34090, 6252, 6254(a)

Lead Dept. CW-019 Public Relations / Press Releases 2 years Mag, 
Ppr GC §34090

Lead Dept. 
(Who Ordered 
the Appraisal)

CW-020 Real Estate Appraisal Reports:  Property NOT 
purchased, Loans not funded, etc. 2 years Mag, 

Ppr

Not accessible to the public; Statewide 
Guidelines show 2 years; GC §§34090, 
6254(h)

Lead Dept. 
(Who Ordered 
the Appraisal)

CW-021 Real Estate Appraisal Reports:  Purchased 
Property, Funded Loans

Minimum 5 
years

Yes:  Before 
Purchase

Mag, 
Mfr, OD,  

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC &OD

Not accessible to the public until purchase 
has been completed; meets grant auditing 
requirements; 2 CFR 200.333;  24 CFR 
91.105(h), & 570.502(b); 29 CFR 97.42, 
GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA   ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS Page CW-6

Office of 
Record (OFR) Retention No. Records Description Total 

Retention Vital? Media 
Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR), or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.

HOLDS: Litigation, claims, complaints, audits, public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY-WIDE (Used by All Departments)

CW-022

Reference Materials:  Policies, Procedures, 
Brochures, Flyers, Manuals, Newsletters, etc:  
Produced by OUTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS 
(League of California Cities, Chamber of 
Commerce, etc.)

When No 
Longer 

Required
  Mag, 

Ppr Non-Records

Lead Dept. CW-023

Reference Materials: Policies, Procedures, 
Brochures, Flyers, Manuals, Newsletters,  
Administrative Policies,  etc:  Produced by  
YOUR Department

Minimum 2 
years   Mag, 

Ppr
Statewide guidelines propose superseded 
+ 2 or 5 years; GC §34090

Lead Dept. CW-024

Reference Materials: Policies, Procedures, 
Brochures, Flyers, Manuals, Newsletters,  
Administrative Policies,  etc:  Produced by 
OTHER Departments

When 
Superseded   Mag, 

Ppr Copies; GC §34090.7

Lead Dept. CW-025 Reports and Studies (Historically significant - 
e.g., Zoning Studies) P   

Mag, 
Mfr, OD,  

Ppr
S/I Yes:  After 

10 years
Administratively and Historically significant, 
therefore retained permanently; GC §34090

Lead Dept. CW-026 Reports and Studies (other than Historically 
significant reports - e.g. Annual Reports) 10 years   Mag, 

Ppr

Information is outdated after 10 years; 
statewide guidelines propose 2 years; If 
historically significant, retain permanently; 
GC §34090

Lead Dept. CW-027 Safety Meetings (all) 5 years
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes: After 
QC & OD

OSHA requires 5 years; State law requires 
2 years; 8 CCR §3203(b)(1), OMB 1220-
0029; GC §34090; LC §6429c

Lead Dept. CW-028 Special Projects / Subject Files / Issue Files Minimum 2 
years

Mag, 
Ppr Department Preference; GC §34090 et seq.

LAWNDALE, CA   ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 4.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS Page CW-7

Office of 
Record (OFR) Retention No. Records Description Total 

Retention Vital? Media 
Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

Retentions apply to the department that is NOT the Office of Record (OFR), or the "Lead Department".  If you are the OFR, refer to your department retention schedule.

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.

HOLDS: Litigation, claims, complaints, audits, public records act requests, and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY-WIDE (Used by All Departments)

Lead Dept. CW-029

Surveys / Questionnaires (that the City issues).  
If a summary of the data is compiled, the survey 
forms are considered a draft or transitory 
record, and can be destroyed as drafts (When 
No Longer Required)

2 years   Mag, 
Ppr GC §34090

Lead Dept. CW-030

Training - ALL COURSE RECORDS 

(Attendance Rosters, Outlines and Materials; 
includes Ethics & Safety Training & Tailgates)

5 years
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes: When 
Inactive

Department preference; Ethics Training is 5 
years; Statewide guidelines propose 7 
years; Calif. Labor Division is required to 
keep their OSHA records 7 years; 
EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3 years 
for promotion, demotion, transfer, selection, 
or discharge; State Law requires 2 -3 years 
for personnel actions;  8 CCR §3203 et 
seq., 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1), LC §6429(c); 
GC §§12946, 12960, 34090, 53235.2(b)

LAWNDALE, CA   ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 7.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Page AS-1

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CABLE TV

Admin. 
Services / 
Cable TV

AS-001
Cable Commission 
AGENDAS  & AGENDA PACKETS

When No 
Longer 

Required - 
Minimum 2 

years

  Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Original Staff 
Reports are filed in the project file; GC 
§34090

City Clerk AS-002 Cable Commission 
MINUTES, BYLAWS, RESOLUTIONS

Copies - 
When No 

Longer 
Required

Yes Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S No Send all originals to the City Clerk; GC 

§34090.7

Admin. 
Services / 
Cable TV

AS-003 Cable TV Programming, Production & 
Scheduling

When No 
Longer 

Required
Mag, Ppr Preliminary drafts; GC §34090 et seq.

Admin. 
Services / 
Cable TV

AS-004 Cable TV Video Footage:  Historical events 
& programming P   Mag, Mfr, 

OD I Yes:  After 
QC'd & OD

When content is of historic significance; 
GC §34090.7

Admin. 
Services / 
Cable TV

AS-005

Cable TV Video Media - Events (DVD & 
Video) - Master Files
Not public meetings - See City Clerk for 
City Council, Planning Commission or other 
public meetings

Minimum 90 
days   Mag, Mfr, 

OD I Yes:  After 
QC'd & OD

Consistent with video tape retention for 
public meetings; GC §34090.7

Admin. 
Services / 
Cable TV

AS-006
Media Technology Advisory Committee 
AGENDAS  & AGENDA PACKETS

When No 
Longer 

Required - 
Minimum 2 

years

  Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Original Staff 
Reports are filed in the project file; GC 
§34090

City Clerk AS-007 Media Technology Advisory Committee
MINUTES, BYLAWS, RESOLUTIONS

Copies - 
When No 

Longer 
Required

Yes Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S No Send all originals to the City Clerk; GC 

§34090.7

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 7.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Page AS-2

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards  

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder. 

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

HUMAN RESOURCES

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-008 Benefit Plan Documents (Optical, Dental, 
etc.)

Duration of 
the Contract 
+ 2 6 years

Yes:  For 
Duration of 

Contract
Mag, Ppr

EEOC / ADEA (Age) requires 1 year after 
benefit plan termination; Federal law 
requires 6 years after filing date for 
retirement; State Law requires 2 years 
after action; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2); 29 USC 
1027; 11 CCR 560; 28 CCR 1300.85.1; 
GC §34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-009
Classification / Reorganization Studies (for 
employee classifications and department 
structures)

 Minimum 3 
years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; Bureau of 
National Affairs recommends 2 years for 
all supplementary Personnel records; 
Wage rate tables are 1 or 2 years; State 
requires 2 years; 29 CFR 516.6, 29 CFR 
1602.14, GC §§12946, 12960,  34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-010 Compensation Surveys & Studies  Minimum 3 
years Mag, Ppr

Department preference; Bureau of 
National Affairs recommends 2 years for 
all supplementary Personnel records; 
Wage rate tables are 1 or 2 years; State 
requires 2 years; 29 CFR 516.6(2), 29 
CFR 1602.14, GC §§12946, 12960, 34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-011 Contracts for Investigators Completion + 
5 years

Yes:  Before 
Completion Mag, Ppr

Department preference; Statute of 
Limitations for contractual obligations is 4 
years; CCP §§337. 337.1(a), 337.15, 343; 
GC §34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-011.1 COVID-19 Exposure Notifications to 
Employees

3 years Mag, Ppr LC §6409.6(k), GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 7.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Page AS-3

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-012 Department of Fair Employment & Housing 
(DFEH or EEOC) Claims

Minimum 
Final 

Disposition + 
5 years

Mag, Ppr

Department preference; All State and 
Federal laws require retention until final 
disposition of formal complaint; State 
requires 2 years after "fully and finally 
disposed"; 2 CCR 11013(c); GC §§12946, 
12960, 34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-013 DMV Pull Notices (ALL, Including Police 
Officers)

When 
Superseded 

or Upon 
Separation

Mag, Ppr Department Preference; GC §34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-014 Employee Investigations
Minimum 

Separation + 
3 years

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; statute of 
limitations for EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) 
requires 3 years for promotion, demotion, 
transfer, selection, or discharge; State Law 
requires 2 -3 years;  29 CFR 1602.31 & 
1627.3(b)(1), GC §§12946, 12960, 34090; 

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-015
Employee Verifications (responses to 
outside banks, mortgage brokers, and others 
about an employee's employment status)

When No 
Longer 

Required
Mag, Ppr

Non-records / Content Not Substantive, 
therefore there is no obligation to retain 
responses; GC §34090 et seq.

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-016 Harassment Prevention Training Certificates 5 years Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes:  After 

QC'd & OD GC §§34090, 53237.2(b)

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 7.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Page AS-4

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-017 I-9s Separation + 
6 years

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD

Required for 1 year from termination or 3 
years from hiring, whichever is later; 
EEOC / FLSA / ADEA (Age) requires 3 
years for "any other forms of employment 
inquiry"; State Law requires 2 -3 years; 8 
CFR 274a.2; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1); GC 
§§12946, 12960, 34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-018 Job Descriptions / Classification 
Specifications

 Minimum 
Superseded 

+ 3 years

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 1 

year

Department preference; 
EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3 years 
for promotion, demotion, transfer, 
selection, or discharge; State Law requires 
2 -3 years; retirement benefits is 6 years 
from last action; 29 CFR 1602.31 & 
1627.3(b)(1), 8  CCR §3204(d)(1) et seq., 
GC §§12946, 12960,  34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-019 OSHA Logs - 200, 300, 301, 301A 5 years Mag, Ppr
OSHA requires 5 years; State law requires 
2 years; 8 CCR §3203(b)(1), GC 
§34090.7; LC §6429c

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-020
Personnel Board
AGENDAS  & AGENDA PACKETS

When No 
Longer 

Required - 
Minimum 10 

years

  Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Original Staff 
Reports are filed in the project file; GC 
§34090

City Clerk AS-021 Personnel Board
MINUTES, BYLAWS, RESOLUTIONS

Copies - 
When No 

Longer 
Required

Yes Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S No Send all originals to the City Clerk; GC 

§34090.7

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 7.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Page AS-5

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-022

Personnel Files - Employee File (Main File / 
Background File)
Includes Application, Evaluations,  
Grievances, Policy Acknowledgements, 
Personnel Action Forms, Livescan results, 
Training Certificates, etc.

Separation + 
6 years

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; statute of 
limitations for retirement benefits is 6 
years from last action; EEOC/FLSA/ADEA 
(Age) requires 3 years for promotion, 
demotion, transfer, selection, or discharge; 
State Law requires 2 -3 years;  29 CFR 
1602.31 & 1627.3(b)(1), GC §§ 3105, 
12946, 12960, 34090; LC 1198.5; 26 CFR 
31-6001-1;  53235.2(b);  53237.2(b)

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-023

Personnel Files - Medical File (all 
employees) 
Pre-employment Medical Clearances,  ADA 
Accommodations, Fit for Duty, etc.

Separation + 
30 years or 
Termination 
of Benefits + 

5 years 
(whichever is 

longer)

Yes:  Until 
Separation

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Files maintained 
separately; Claims can be made for 30 
years for toxic substance exposure; 8 CCR 
§3204(d)(1) et seq., 8 CCR 5144, 8 CCR 
15400.2; 29 CFR 1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC 
§§12946, 12960,  34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-024

Recruitment and Testing File - 
(Includes Advertisements, Applications for 
Unsuccessful Candidates, Interview Notes, 
Job Brochures, Test Data, Testing Analysis 
& statistical Metric, Job Analysis, Rating 
Sheets, Scantrons, etc.)

Close of 
Recruitment 

+ 3 years
Mag, Ppr

Department preference (Part Time 
Employee Recruitments are retained by 
the Department, except for the Successful 
Application); EEOC / FLSA / ADEA (Age) 
requires 1-3 years; State Law requires 2 - 
3 years; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1), 29 CFR 
1602.14; 2 CCR 11013(c); GC §§12946, 
12960,  34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-025 Studies & Surveys Conducted on Behalf of 
the City (Sick Leave, Attrition, Benefits, etc.)

When No 
Longer 

Required
Mag, Ppr

Content not substantive; Preliminary drafts 
not retained in the ordinary course of 
business; GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 7.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Page AS-6

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-026 Workers Compensation Claim Runs 5 years Mag Ppr
Department preference (meets municipal 
government auditing standards); GC 
§34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Human 
Resources

AS-027
Workers Compensation Claims  / Long Term 
Disability Claims (Includes all Accident, 
Incident, or Injury Reports from Employees)

Separation + 
30 years or 
Termination 
of Benefits + 

5 years 
(whichever is 

longer)

Yes:  Until 
Separation

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Files maintained 
separately; Claims can be made for 30 
years for toxic substance exposure; 8 CCR 
§3204(d)(1) et seq., 8 CCR 5144, 8 CCR 
15400.2; 29 CFR 1910.1020(d)(1)(i), GC 
§§12946, 12960, 34090

RISK MANAGEMENT

Admin. 
Services  / 

Risk Manage.
AS-028 Accident Reports / Incident Reports (No 

Claim Filed) 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §34090

Admin. 
Services  / 

Risk Manage.
AS-029 Claims / Civil & Liability

Final 
Resolution + 

5 years

Yes:  Until 
Resolution

Mag, Mfr, 
OD,  Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department Preference; Covers various 
statute of limitations; CCP §§ 337 et seq.; 
GC §§ 911.2, 34090, 34090.6; PC §832.5

Admin. 
Services  / 

Risk Manage.
AS-030 Drug & Alcohol Test Results (All - Positives 

and Negatives) 5 years Mag Ppr

Department preference; D.O.T. Requires 5 
years for positive tests, 1 year for negative 
tests; EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3 
years physical examinations; State Law 
requires 2 years; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1)(v), 
GC §§12946, 12960, 34090; 49 CFR 
655.71 et seq.; 49 CFR 382.401 et seq.  
49 CFR 653.71

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 7.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Page AS-7

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Admin. 
Services  / 

Risk Manage.
AS-031 Employee Litigation Separation + 

5 years
Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD

Department preference; ; CCP §§ 337 et 
seq.; GC §§ 911.2, 34090, 34090.6; PC 
§832.5

Admin. 
Services  / 

Risk Manage.
AS-032

Incident Reports where a Loss of Property 
was incurred that can be recovered 
(Vandalism, Vehicle Accidents, etc.)

5 years Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes: After 

QC & OD
Department Preference (meets auditing 
standards); GC §34090

Admin. 
Services  / 

Risk Manage.
AS-033 OSHA Inspections & Citations 5 years Mag, Ppr

OSHA requires 5 years; State law requires 
2 years; 8 CCR §3203(b)(1), OMB 1220-
0029; GC §34090; LC §6429c

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



 Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  CITY CLERK Page CC-1

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

City Clerk CC-001

Agenda Packets:  City Council, Public Finance 
Authority, Redevelopment Agency / Successor 
Agency,  Lawndale Cable Usage Corporation 
and Lawndale Housing Authority

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC &OD
Department preference;  Includes 
Appeals; GC §34090

City Clerk CC-002

Agreements - Council-Approved If Imaged, 
Infrastructure, CIPs, MOUs, MOAs  

includes all contractual obligations (e.g. 
Amendments, Insurance Certificates, Scope of 
Work or Successful Proposal)

Examples of Infrastructure:  Architects, CalPERS, 
CIPs (Capital Improvement Projects,) franchise 
agreements,  settlement agreements, subdivision 
improvement agreements, development,  Joint 
Powers, MOUs, settlement,  water rights, etc.

P Yes:  Before 
Completion

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S/I Yes:  Upon 

Completion

Department Preference; All infrastructure 
contracts should be permanent for 
emergency response; Statute of 
Limitations is 4 years; 10 years for Errors 
& Omissions; land records are permanent 
by law; CCP §337 et. seq., GC §34090

City Clerk CC-003

Agreements - Council-Approved Non-
Infrastructure that are NOT Imaged 

includes all contractual obligations (e.g. 
Amendments, Insurance Certificates, Scope of 
Work or Successful Proposal)

Examples of NON-Infrastructure:  Consulting, 
disposal, City Manager employment contracts, 
leases, loans, mutual aid, professional services, 
services, etc.

Completion + 
10 years

Yes:  Before 
Completion

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes:  Upon 

Completion

Department preference; Covers E&O 
Statute of Limitations; Published Audit 
Standards=4-7 years; Statute of 
Limitations: Contracts & Spec's=4 years, 
Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 years, 
Developers=comp. + 10 years; Statewide 
guidelines propose termination + 5 years; 
CCP §337 et. seq., GC §34090

CITY CLERK

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



 Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  CITY CLERK Page CC-2

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY CLERK
City Clerk CC-004 Assessment Districts P Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 
QC &OD Department preference; GC §34090

City Clerk CC-005
Audits - Final / CAFR (Consolidated Annual 
Financial Report / Annual Financial Statements 
/ Single Audits

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I No Department Preference; GC §34090

City Clerk CC-006

Bid Packets:  Bids or Proposals in response to 
RFPs (Request for Proposals) and/or RFQs 
(Request for Qualifications), Notices, 
Specifications

2 years Mag, Ppr

After 2/2012, Purchasing maintains 
originals for 7 years (their preference to 
comply with Federal Agency 
requirements); GC §34090

City Clerk CC-007 Board & Commission / Committee Maddy Act 
Lists / Vacancy Notices 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §34090

City Clerk CC-008 Board & Commission Applications -  (All 
Advisory Bodies) 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §34090

City Clerk CC-009 Board & Commission Bylaws -  (All Advisory 
Bodies)

Superseded 
+ 2 years

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC &OD Department preference; GC §34090

City Clerk CC-010
Bonds: CIP Labor & Materials, Performance 
Bonds, Letters of Credit, Encroachment Permit 
Bonds, etc.

Release of 
Bond / Letter 

of Credit
Mag, Ppr

Securities (Performance Bonds, Letters of 
Credit, CD's, etc.) are released after the 
Notice of Completion is issued and 
replaced with the Warranty Bond, which 
is released 1 year after the Notice of 
Completion date.  GC §34090

City Clerk CC-011 Budgets - Final P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S  Yes:  After 

QC & OD Department Preference; GC §34090

City Clerk CC-012 City Articles of Incorporation / Charter P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC &OD Department preference; GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



 Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  CITY CLERK Page CC-3

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY CLERK
City Clerk CC-013 City Council,  Board & Commission Historical 

List of Members / Rosters P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC &OD Department preference; GC §34090

Admin. 
Services / 

Risk Manag.
CC-014 Claim Forms

Copies - 
When No 

Longer 
Required

Mag, Ppr GC §34090.7

City Clerk CC-015
Deeds 
(Easements and Rights-of-Way are maintained 
by Public Works)

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I No GC §34090(a)

City Clerk CC-016
Economic Interest Filings (FPPC 700 Series 
Forms - Statement of Economic Interests):  
ALL

7 years Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 2 

years
City maintains original statements; GC 
§81009(d)(e)(f)&(g)

City Clerk CC-017 FPPC Form 801 (Gift to Agency Report) 7 years Mag, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 2 
years Must post on website; GC §81009(e) 

City Clerk CC-018 FPPC Form 802 (Event Ticket  / Pass 
Distributions Agency Report) 7 years Mag, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 2 

years
Should post on website for 4 years; GC 
§81009(e)

City Clerk CC-019 FPPC Form 803 (Behested Payment Report) 7 years Mag, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 2 
years GC §81009(e)

City Clerk CC-020 FPPC Form 806 (Agency Report of Public 
Official Appointments) 7 years Mag, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 2 

years

Must post on website; 2 CCR 18705.5; 2 
CCR 18702.5(b)(3); GC §34090; GC 
§81009(e)   

City Clerk CC-021 FPPC Lobbyist Authorization / Reporting - 
FPPC Form 635 / 602 5 years Mag, Ppr 2 CCR 18615(d); GC §34090

City Clerk CC-022 Campaign Filings (FPPC 400 Series Forms  & 
Form 501):    UNSUCCESSFUL CANDIDATES 5 years Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr S Yes:  After 2 
years

Paper must be retained for at least 2 
years; GC §81009(b)&(g)

City Clerk CC-023
Campaign Filings (FPPC 400 Series Forms & 
Form 501):    SUCCESSFUL CANDIDATES 
(Elected Officials)

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes:  After 2 

years
Paper must be retained for at least 2 
years; GC §81009(b)&(g)

ELECTIONS - CONSOLIDATED

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



 Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  CITY CLERK Page CC-4

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY CLERK
City Clerk CC-024

Campaign Filings (FPPC 400 Series Forms):   
THOSE NOT REQUIRED TO FILE ORIGINAL 
WITH CITY CLERK (copies)

4 years Mag, Ppr Paper must be retained for at least 2 
years; GC §81009(f)&(g)

City Clerk CC-025
Campaign Filings (FPPC 400 Series Forms):  
OTHER COMMITTEES (PACS - not candidate-
controlled)

7 years Mag, Ppr Paper must be retained for at least 2 
years; GC §81009(c)&(g)

City Clerk CC-026
Candidate File: Nomination Papers, Candidate 
Statement Forms, etc. - SUCCESSFUL 
CANDIDATES

Term of 
Office + 4 

years
Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; Statewide 
guidelines proposes 4 years for 
successful candidates, 2 years for 
unsuccessful; CA law states term of office 
and 4 years after the expiration of term 
and does not delineate between the two; 
EC §17100

City Clerk CC-027
Candidate File: Nomination Papers, Candidate 
Statement Forms, etc. - UNSUCCESSFUL 
CANDIDATES

Election + 4 
years Mag, Ppr

Statewide guidelines proposes 4 years for 
successful candidates, 2 years for 
unsuccessful; CA law states term of office 
and 4 years after the expiration of term 
and does not delineate between the two; 
EC §17100

City Clerk CC-028

Elections - GENERAL, WORKING or 
ADMINISTRATION Files (Correspondence, 
Applications to fill a Vacancy on the City 
Council, Precinct Maps, County Election 
Services, Candidate Statements to be printed 
in the Sample Ballot, Polling Locations and 
Precinct Board Members, Notices, Postings, 
etc.) 

Minimum 2 
years Mag, Ppr GC §34090

City Clerk CC-029 Elections - HISTORICAL (Sample ballot, 
copies of resolutions, final results) P Mag, Mfr, 

OD,  Ppr S No Retained for Historical Value, GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



 Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  CITY CLERK Page CC-5

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY CLERK

City Clerk CC-030 Elections - Petitions (Initiative, Recall or 
Referendum)

Results + 8 
months, or 

Final 
Examination 
+ 1 year after 

petition 
examination if 

petition is 
insufficient

Ppr

Not accessible to the public; The 8 month 
retention applies after election results, or 
final examination if no election, unless 
there is a legal or FPPC proceeding.  EC 
§§17200(b)(3), 17400

ELECTIONS - STAND-ALONE (use in conjunction with Consolidated elections … records series are not repeated)

City Clerk CC-031 Applications to View Voter Registration 
Information 5 years Ppr EC §2188(f)

City Clerk CC-032 Elections - Ballots, Ballot Security Envelopes  - 
After Election 6 mo. Ppr EC §17302

City Clerk CC-033 Elections - Ballots, Ballot Security Envelopes - 
After Recount 6 mo. Ppr EC §17306

City Clerk CC-034 Elections - Challenged & Assisted Voters List 6 mo. Ppr If uncontested, EC §17304 

City Clerk CC-035 Elections - Inspector Receipts for Ballots 6 mo. Ppr EC 17302, 17306
City Clerk CC-036 Elections - Precinct Officer Appointments 6 mo. Ppr EC §17503

City Clerk CC-037 Elections - Roster of Voters 5 years Mag, OD,  
Ppr S Yes:  After 

QC & OD EC §17300

City Clerk CC-038 Elections - Tally Sheets, Logic & Accuracy 
Tests 6 mo. Ppr EC §17304

City Clerk CC-039 Elections - Vote-by-Mail  Applications, Roster 
of Absentee Applications 6 mo. Ppr EC §17505

City Clerk CC-040 Elections - Vote-by-Mail  Identification 
Envelopes 6 mo. Ppr EC §17302

City Clerk CC-041 Elections - Voter Index Copies used as the 
Voting Record at Polling Places 6 mo. Ppr EC §17304

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



 Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  CITY CLERK Page CC-6

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY CLERKCity Clerk CC-042 Elections - Voter Index Original 5 years Ppr EC §17001
(End of Elections Section)

City Clerk CC-043 Ethics Training Certificates 5 years Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S Yes:  After 

QC'd & OD GC §§34090, 53235.2(b)

City Clerk CC-044
Historical Records, Photographs, & Historical 
Projects (e.g. Incorporation, City Seal, Awards 
of significant historical interest, etc.)

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD,  Ppr S No

City Clerk determines historical 
significance; records can address a 
variety of subjects and media.  Some 
media (e.g. audio and video tape) may be 
limited because of the media's life 
expectancy; GC §34090

City Clerk CC-045
Insurance Certificates that are not filed with 
Contracts
(Filed chronologically by month)

11 years Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC'd & OD

Department preference; Covers E&O and 
Latent Defect Statute of Limitations; CCP 
§337 et. seq., GC §34090

City Clerk CC-046

Minutes:  All Boards & Commission 
(Planning Commission, Beautification 
Committee, Parks, Recreation & Social 
Services Commission, Senior Citizen Advisory 
Committee, Youth Advisory Committee, etc. ) 

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I No GC §34090(e) 

City Clerk CC-047

Minutes:  City Council, Cable Corporation, 
Public Finance Authority, Redevelopment 
Agency /  Successor Agency, Lawndale Cable 
Usage Corporation and Lawndale Housing 
Authority

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I No GC §34090(e) 

City Clerk CC-048
Oath of Office:  City Council, Planning 
Commission Members, All Boards & 
Commissions

Separation + 
4 years

Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 

QC'd & OD

Department Preference; Statute of 
Limitations:  Public official misconduct is 
discovery of offense + 4 years,  GC 
§§36507, 34090; PC §§801.5, 803(c); 29 
USC 1113

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



 Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  CITY CLERK Page CC-7

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper after 
Imaged & 

QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

CITY CLERK
City Clerk CC-049 Ordinances P Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr S / I No GC §34090(e) 

City Clerk CC-050 Prop. 218 Fees & Charges:  Ballots and/or 
protest letters 2 years Ppr GC §53753(e)(2)

City Clerk CC-051 Public Records Requests / Subpoenas Duces 
Tecum 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §34090

City Clerk CC-052 Recordings - VIDEO - City Council & Planning 
Commission (and associated bodies)

Minimum 2 
years   Mag, OD 

Department preference; Video tapes of 
meetings are required for 90 days; GC 
§34090.6

City Clerk CC-053 Records Destruction Authorization Forms & 
Certifications 10 years Mag, Mfr, 

OD, Ppr S / I Yes:  After 
QC'd & OD Department preference; GC §34090

City Clerk CC-053.1
Redistricting Web Page / District Boundary 
Web Page (Map, Redistricting Process, 
Agendas, Calendars, Notice, etc.)

10 years Mag, Ppr EC §21608(g); GC §34090

City Clerk CC-054
Resolutions:  All Boards & Commissions 
(Planning Commission & Parks & Recreation 
Commission)

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I No GC §34090(e) 

City Clerk CC-055

Resolutions:  City Council, Cable Corporation, 
Public Finance Authority, Redevelopment 
Agency /  Successor Agency, Lawndale 
Housing Authority

P Mag, Mfr, 
OD, Ppr S / I No GC §34090(e) 

City Clerk CC-056 Statement of Facts / Registry of Public 
Agencies 2 years Mag, Ppr GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-1

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

BUILDING

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-001 Address Files / Building Permits P Yes (all)

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD
Department preference; GC §34090, 
H&S §19850

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-002 Building Permit Database (CityView / Citizenserve) P Yes (all) Mag

Department Preference - Data is 
interrelated; GC §34090, H&S 
§19850

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-003 Building Plans - Cancelled, Expired or 

Withdrawn P   
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes:  After 
QC & OD

Department preference; Preliminary 
drafts not retained in the ordinary 
course of business; CBC §104.7; 
H&S§19850, GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-004 Building Plans - Finalled -  TENANT 

IMPROVEMENTS P Yes (all)
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes:  After 
QC & OD

Department Preference; Law requires 
for the life of the building for 
commercial and common interest 
dwellings only; CBC 104.7 & 107.5, 
H&S§19850, GC §34090  

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-005

Building Plans - Finalled - INDUSTRIAL, 
COMMERCIAL, MULTI-FAMILY DWELLINGS, 
PLACES OF PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION

P Yes (all)
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes:  After 
QC & OD

Department Preference; Law requires 
for the life of the building for 
commercial and common interest 
dwellings only; CBC 104.7 & 107.5, 
H&S§19850, GC §34090  

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-2

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-006

Building Plans - Finalled - SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL - SFR and APPURTENANCES
Energy Calculations, Structural Calculations, Soil 
Reports, Geotechnical Reports

10 years Mag,  
Ppr

Department preference (180 days is 
required); State law requires plans 
need not be filed for dwellings less 
than 2 stories, garages & 
appurtenances, farms/ranches, 1-
story with bearing walls less than 25'; 
CBC requires 180 days from 
completion date;  CBC 104.7 & 
107.5, H&S§19850, GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-007 California Building Codes / Uniform Building Codes

Minimum 
While 

Ordinance is 
in Force

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD GC §50022.6

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-008 Certificate of Occupancy (CofO) P Yes (all)

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD Department Preference; GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-009 Correction Notices, Stop Work Notices P

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD
Department Preference (Preliminary 
Drafts); GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-010 Plan Check Comments (Site Plan File) P

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD
Department Preference (Preliminary 
Drafts); GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-011 Reports:  Building Activity

When No 
Longer 

Required

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Preliminary drafts (the database can 
re-create the reports on demand); 
GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-012 Requests & Permissions to Receive Copies of 

Plans (to and from Architects) 2 years
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes:  After 
QC & OD GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-3

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Comm. Dev. 
/ Building CD-013 Utility Clearances, School District Clearances When Permit 

Finalled

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD
Department Preference (Preliminary 
Drafts); GC §34090

CDBG / HOUSING / FORMER REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-014 Five Year Consolidated Action Plan and the related 
Action Plans / PHA Plans

Expiration of 
Plan + 5 

years
Mag, Ppr Consolidated Plan Requirement; GC 

§34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-015 Great Neighborhoods Program (Commercial and 
Residential Rehabilitation) 5 years Mag, Ppr

Meets auditing standards; Grants 
covered by a Consolidated Action 
Plan are required for 5 years; 
Uniform Admin. Requirements for 
Grants to Local Governments is 3 
years from expenditure report or final 
payment of grantee or subgrantee; 
statewide guidelines propose 4 
years; 2 CFR 200.333; 24 CFR 
91.105(h), 92.505, 570.490, & 
570.502(a&b), 29 CFR 97.42; OMB 
Circular A-110 & A-133; GC §34090; 
24 CFR 982.158, 884.214;

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-4

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-016

Housing Programs:   
All, including Low-Mod, CalHome, CDBG & HOME

WITH Recapture or Resale Restrictions

5 years after 
the 

Affordability 
Period 

Terminates, 
or the Written 

Agreement 
Terminates, 
Whichever is 

Longer

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC &OD

HUD requires 5 years after the 
project completion; documents 
imposing recapture / resale 
restrictions are 5 years after the 
affordability period terminates; 
Uniform Admin. Requirements for 
Grants to Local Governments is 3 
years from expenditure report; 
statewide guidelines propose 4 
years;  2 CFR 200.333; 24 CFR 
92.508(a)(c)(2); 29 CFR 97.42, GC 
§34090; 24 CFR 982.158, 884.214;

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-017

Housing Programs:  All, including ow-Mod, 
CalHome, CDBG & HOME

NO RECAPTURE / RESALE RESTRICTIONS 

Loan Pay-off 
or 

Forgiveness 
+ 5 years

Mag, 
Mfr, OD,  

Ppr
S / I Yes:  After 

QC &OD

HUD requires 5 years after the 
project completion; documents 
imposing recapture / resale 
restrictions are 5 years after the 
affordability period terminates; 
Uniform Admin. Requirements for 
Grants to Local Governments is 3 
years from expenditure report; 
statewide guidelines propose 4 
years; 2 CFR 200.333; 24 CFR 
92.508(a)(c)(2); 29 CFR 97.42, GC 
§34090; 24 CFR 982.158, 884.214;

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-018 HUD Reports (ALL Reports to HUD) 5 years   Mag, Ppr Department preference; ; GC §34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-5

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-019 Redevelopment Plans, Redevelopment Projects 
(Historical) P Yes Mag, Ppr Department preference; GC §34090 

et seq.

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-020 Redevelopment Projects (Not Historical) 10 years Yes Mag, Ppr Department preference; GC §34090 
et seq.

Comm. Dev. 
/ CDBG, 
Housing, 
Redev.

CD-021 Redevelopment Successor Agency Real Property - 
Acquisition and Sale or Transfer P Yes Mag, Ppr Department preference; GC §34090 

et seq.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT / ENGINEERING (PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT) 

Community 
Dev. / 

Engineering / 
Private Dev.

CD-022 Design & Construction Standards - Authored by 
the City for Private Development P

Mag, 
Mfr, OD,  

Ppr
S/I Yes:  After 

QC & OD Department Preference; GC §34090

Community 
Dev. / 

Engineering / 
Private Dev.

CD-023 Developer's Bonds / Security
Close or 

Default + 5 
years

Mag, Ppr
Department Preference; meets 
auditing standards; GC §34090, 26 
CFR 31.6001-1

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-6

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Community 
Dev. / 

Engineering / 
Private Dev.

CD-024 Parcel Maps / Tract Maps P Yes (all)
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S No

Drafts should be destroyed; Some 
maps are also retained by Planning; 
Selected maps are retained in Public 
Works for administrative purposes; 
GC §34090, 34090.7

Community 
Dev. / 

Engineering / 
Private Dev.

CD-025

Private Development Projects / Job Files:  
Administration File / Construction Inspection
Construction Inspections, Correspondence, Daily 
Logs, Inspector's Records, Photos, etc.

Completion + 
10 years 

Yes:  Until 
Completed Mag, Ppr

Statute of Limitations for Errors & 
Omissions is 10 years; Statute of 
Limitations: Contracts & Spec's=4 
years, Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 
years, Developers=comp. + 10 years; 
CCP §337 et. seq., GC §34090

Community 
Dev. / 

Engineering / 
Private Dev.

CD-026

Private Development Projects / Job Files:  
Permanent Files
Certificate of Acceptance / Approval (copy), 
Dedications, Abandonments, Drainage, Driveway,  
Private Lab Verifications, Testing Lab Final 
Reports, Studies, Reports, Geotechnical and Soil 
Reports / Hydrology Reports, etc.

P Yes:  Until 
Completed

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S/I Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; retained for 
disaster preparedness purposes;  GC 
§34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-7

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

PLANNING

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-027

 Planning Projects - Discretionary & Ministerial - 
Approved Permanent Entitlements & Permits

(Includes Associated CEQA Noticing, Conditions of 
Approval, Environmental Determinations, Staff 
Reports, Plans)      

Examples:  Conditional Use Permits (CUPs), 
Determination of Similarity, Development Review, 
Development Plan Review, Environmental 
Assessment,  General Plan Amendment, Historic 
District Designation, Home Occupation Permit, 
Certificate of Appropriateness, Site Development 
Permit, Master Sign Program, Mills Act 
Participation, Outdoor Dining, Public Use Permit, 
Specific Plans, Tentative Parcel or Tract Map,  
Variances, Wireless Communication, Zone 
Changes, etc.                       

P Yes
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S / I Yes:  After 
QC & OD

Department preference; Final 
environmental determinations are 
required to be kept a "reasonable 
period of time"; 14 CCR §15095(c); 
GC§§34090, 34090.7

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-028 Annexations / Boundaries / Consolidations / 

LAFCO P
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S / I Yes:  After 
QC & OD Land Records; GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-029 Census, Demographics

When No 
Longer 

Required
Mag, Ppr (Non-Records - Census Bureau is 

OFR)

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-8

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-029.1

Environmental Determinations:  Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs), Negative Declarations, 
Categorical Exceptions, etc.)  / CEQA / NEPA

Correspondence submitted to, or transferred 
from the agency, and all internal agency 
communications, including staff notes related 
to a non-exempt CEQA action

Completion 
of CEQA 
Process

Mag, Ppr

Not all internal communications and 
notes are required to be saved; "E-
mails that do not provide insight into 
the project or the agency’s CEQA 

compliance with respect to the 
project — are not within the scope of 

section 21167.6, subdivision (e) and 
need not be retained." Golden Door 
Properties, LLC v. Superior Court of 
San Diego County  (County of San 
Diego, et al., Real Parties in Interest) 
(53 Cal.App.5th 733); PRC 21167,6; 
GC §34090 

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-030

Environmental Determinations:  Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs), Negative Declarations, 
etc.)  / CEQA
Inside City boundaries

P
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S Yes:  After 
QC & OD

Usually filed in the project file; Final 
environmental determinations are 
required to be kept a "reasonable 
period of time"; 14 CCR §15095(c); 
GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-031

Environmental Determinations:  Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs), Negative Declarations, 
etc.) / CEQA
Outside City boundaries

When No 
Longer 

Required
Mag, Ppr

Non-records; EIRs and Negative 
Declarations within the City 
Boundaries are with the project file

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-032 General Plan,  Elements and Amendments P

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S / I Yes:  After 

QC & OD
City Clerk Maintains all Agenda 
Packets Permanently; GC §34090.7

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-9

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-033 Long Range Planning / Planning Studies P

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Usually filed in the project file; Final 
environmental determinations are 
required to be kept a "reasonable 
period of time"; 14 CCR §15095(c); 
GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-034 Master Plans, Specific Plans, Land Use Plans and 

Amendments P
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S / I Yes:  After 
QC & OD Department preference; GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-035 Materials Boards

When No 
Longer 

Required
Mag, Ppr

Preliminary drafts not retained in the 
ordinary course of business; GC 
§34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-036

Planning Commission
AGENDAS  & AGENDA PACKETS P   

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S / I Yes:  After 

QC & OD

Department preference; Original Staff 
Reports are filed in the project file; 
GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-037

Planning Commission
AUDIO RECORDINGS

Minimum 2 
years   Mag, OD 

Department preference; Audio 
Required for 30 days; GC 
§54953.5(b); video tapes of meetings 
are required for 90 days; GC 
§34090.6

City Clerk CD-038 Planning Commission
MINUTES, BYLAWS, RESOLUTIONS

Copies - 
When No 

Longer 
Required

Yes
Mag, 

Mfr, OD, 
Ppr

S No GC §34090.7

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-039

Temporary Use Permits (TUP) / Temporary Signs / 
Banner Permits, etc. (Approved & Unapproved)
Christmas Tree Lots, Pumpkin Lots, etc.

Expiration + 
2 years

Yes:  
During 
Event

Mag, Ppr Department preference; GC§§34090

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



Ver. 5.0 RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Page CD-10

Office of 
Record 
(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description Total 
Retention Vital? Media 

Options

Image:  
I=Import 
M=Mfr 

S=Scan

Destroy 
Paper 
after 

Imaged & 
QC'd?

Comments / Reference

If the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards                                                                                                                                                                         

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                                                       

HOLDS: Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-040 Zoning Maps (Historically Significant) P Yes (all)

Mag, 
Mfr, OD,  

Ppr
S No Department Preference; GC §34090

Comm. Dev. 
/ Planning CD-041 Zoning Ordinance Amendments / Zone Changes P Yes

Mag, 
Mfr, OD, 

Ppr
S / I Yes:  After 

QC & OD
Department Preference (copies); GC 
§34090.7

LAWNDALE, CA.  ©1995-2020 Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516 Adopted: 7/20/2020



4













MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

    March 15, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber,
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Bernadette Suarez, Councilmember Rhonda 
Hofmann-Gorman, Councilmember Sirley Cuevas   

Other Participants: City Clerk Erica Harbison, City Manager Kevin M. Chun, City 
Attorney Gregory M. Murphy, Los Angeles County Sheriff's 
Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services Director 
Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human Resources 
Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director Michael 
Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos, Public Works Director Julian Lee 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Sirley Cuevas led the flag salute.

C. PRESENTATION

1. Recognition of Service - Outgoing Commissioners & Committee Members

Mayor Pullen-Miles presented the recognition of service for outgoing Commissioners & 
Committee Members. 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Captain Duane Allen summarized the recent law enforcement activities.

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

• Caroline Bustillos, Resident, spoke of the Metro railway location and suggested Hawthorne
Boulevard to attract pedestrians into the businesses and keep the railway away from a
residential area where it will cancel the green belt and affect home values.

• Pam London, Resident, spoke in opposition of business advertisements placed on vehicles
and homes due to clutter and/or damage to property.

• Randall Abram, Resident, spoke of the fireworks booth application enforcement.

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

5



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
March 15, 2021 
Page 2 

The City Council and staff responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement 
of any issues on a future meeting agenda. 

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

2. Consideration of Claim Against the City
Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claim filed by Larry Justason and
instruct staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimant.

3. Accounts Payable Register
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-013, authorizing
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $ 622,087.67.

4. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – March 1, 2021
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

A motion by Councilmember Cuevas to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Suarez and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

H. ADMINISTRATION

5. Annual 2020 General Plan Progress Report
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) review the 2020 draft Annual Report; (b)
make any revisions; and (c) direct staff to forward the report to the State Department of
Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and
Research.

Community Development Director Sean Moore, reported on the Annual 2020 General Plan 
Progress Report. 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney review the 2020 draft Annual Report, make any 
revisions, and direct staff to forward the report to the State Department of Housing and 
Community Development and the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, was 
seconded by Councilmember Cuevas and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

6. Change Order No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Annual Street Improvement Project
No. 2020-5 and 2020-6 (Measure M Street Improvement Project)
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the contract change Order No. 1 for
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Annual Street Improvement Project in the amount of $337,105.00;
(b) approve contingency in amount of $16,895.00 for the Contract Change Order No. 1
for FY 2019-20 Annual Street Improvement Project; (c) approve Contract Amendment
No. 1 for FY 2019-20 Annual Street Improvements Project No. 2020-5 and 2020-6; and
(d) approve the allocation of Measure M Fund in the amount of $354,000.00 to the
account number 272-310-700.146 Street Improvements.

Public Works Director Julian Lee, reported on the Change Order No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2019-
2020 Annual Street Improvement Project No. 2020-5 and 2020-6 (Measure M Street 
Improvement Project). 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
March 15, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Kearney inquired if the amount allocated was a matching fund. Public works 
Director Lee and Finance Director Pendleton confirmed it is a matching fund.  

 
A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to approve the contract change Order No. 1 for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Annual Street Improvement Project in the amount of $337,105.00, 
approve contingency in amount of $16,895.00 for the Contract Change Order No. 1 for FY 
2019-20 Annual Street Improvement Project, approve Contract Amendment No. 1 for FY 
2019-20 Annual Street Improvements Project No. 2020-5 and 2020-6; and approve the 
allocation of Measure M Fund in the amount of $354,000.00 to the account number 272-
310-700.146 Street Improvements, was seconded by Councilmember Suarez and carried by 
a vote of 5-0. 
 
7. City Council Subcommittee for Metro C Line (Green ) Extension Project 

Recommendation: that the City Council consider the formation of a City Council 
subcommittee for the C Line (Green) Extension Project.  
 

City Manager Kevin M. Chun presented the proposed formation of a City Council subcommittee 
for the C Line (Green) Extension Project. 

 
City Council came to a unanimous consensus, without objection, to appoint Mayor Pullen-
Miles and Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman on the City Council Subcommittee for Metro 
C Line (Green) Extension Project.  

 
I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

City Manager Kevin Chun announced the scoping review period for Metro C Line (Green) 
Extension to Torrance has been extended to March 29, 2021 and up to when the 
Draft Environmental Impact (EIR) is submitted and presented. Mr. Chun added the City is 
looking into a date to open city facilities, under Los Angeles County’s guidance.  
 

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
8. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
Councilmember Suarez attended a meeting with Metro regarding the C Line extension.  
 
Councilmember Cuevas attended the League of California Cities meeting.  
 
Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman attended a meeting with Metro where she asked various 
questions on behalf of Lawndale residents. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kearney attended Sherriff’s Liability Trust Oversight Committee and the City 
Council subcommittee meeting with the Lawndale Elementary School District.  
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles attended the League of California Cities meeting and spoke about the 
various roles of the Secretary of State, Shirley N. Weber. 
 
 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
March 15, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 
K. CLOSED SESSION 

 
At 7:35 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session. 

 
9. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case. 

 
10. Conference with Legal Counsel – Potential Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(2), to confer with legal counsel regarding a significant exposure to litigation, 
the facts and circumstances of which are not known to the potential plaintiff. 
 

At 8:07 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 
 
City Attorney Gregory M. Murphy reported that the City Council met in Closed Session 
to discuss the two items listed on the Closed Session agenda. On item number 9, the City 
Council unanimously voted to authorize the initiation of litigation. The City Council was 
updated on item number 10 and there was no reportable action taken.  

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting in memoriam of 
Penny Verna E. Johnston Bolton at 8:09 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 04/05/2021 

 



6

























































































































































7









8


	21-04-05 reg.agn
	01. DMV Donate Life Proclamation_April 2021
	02. Dispose of and purchase PW Vehicles
	03. Records Retention Schedule-Review and updates FY 20-21
	Exhibit A 77-04 Records and Information Management (Rev. 2021- CC-2104-016).pdf
	Exhibit A (part 2) 77-04 Records and Information Management (Rev. 2021- CC-2104-016).docx.pdf
	_CITY WIDE_20-21
	Admin Services (Cable HR)_20-21
	City Clerk_20-21
	Community Dev. (Build, CDBG-Housing, Eng-Dev, Plann)_20-21



	04.  Warrants
	05. 21-03-15 reg.min
	06. Master Fee Schedule
	07. Updated Illegal Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021
	08. Coucilmember meetings

	Button1: 


